
 

 
 

IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT  
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF ILLINOIS 

EASTERN DIVISION 
 
UNITED STATES SOCCER      ) 
FEDERATION, INC.,           ) 
          )  
   Plaintiff,      ) Civil Action No.  
          ) 
 v.         ) Judge  
          ) 
TSA STORES, INC.,        ) Jury Trial Demanded 
              )  
   Defendant.       ) 
 

COMPLAINT FOR TRADEMARK INFRINGEMENT, UNFAIR COMPETITION, 
TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE AND RELATED STATE AND COMMON LAW CLAIMS  

 
 Plaintiff United States Soccer Federation, Inc. (“U.S. Soccer” or “Plaintiff”), by and 

through its attorneys, Norvell IP LLC, alleges the following as and for its Complaint For 

Trademark Infringement, Unfair Competition, Tortious Interference and Related State and 

Common Law Claims against defendant TSA Stores, Inc. (“TSA” or “Defendant”): 

NATURE OF ACTION 

1. U.S. Soccer is the governing body of soccer in all its forms in the United States.  

U.S. Soccer is also the exclusive, worldwide owner of all rights, title, and interest to the 

trademarks, trade names, service marks, logos, designs, seals, symbols, emblems, and other 

intellectual property for all United States National Teams and their uniforms, marks and designs.  

The goodwill and consumer recognition associated with U.S. Soccer’s trademarks are among its 

most valuable assets and U.S. Soccer takes care to protect those assets.  For example, U.S. 

Soccer only permits one sporting goods retailer to use its marks on an exclusive basis.  This 

retailer is considered an official sponsor of U.S. Soccer.  In addition, U.S. Soccer enters into 

agreements with all of the United States National Team players, both men’s and women’s 
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through their respective player associations, prohibiting the players from making any 

endorsements or commercial appearances, or consenting to the use by any third party of their 

image or likeness, in which they appear in the official team uniform, or in any other attire 

bearing the marks and logos of U.S. Soccer, without the prior written consent and approval of 

U.S. Soccer. 

2. TSA is a sporting goods retailer that operates under the name The Sports 

Authority and sells, inter alia, soccer equipment and apparel.  TSA has begun airing 

advertisements around and during the 2010 FIFA World Cup and on the Internet (Facebook, 

Youtube) that include slow motion close-ups of the official crest and logo of U.S. Soccer, as well 

as related marks, and depicts a United States National Team member wearing the official team 

uniform, all without the consent of U.S. Soccer.   

3. In addition to being an unfair and unjust business practice, TSA’s misuse of U.S. 

Soccer’s marks, logos and uniforms is likely to cause confusion, mistake and deception among 

consumers and give the false impression that U.S. Soccer has an authorized relationship with 

TSA, which it most clearly does not.  TSA’s actions therefore infringe upon U.S. Soccer’s 

federal trademark rights, in violation of the Lanham Act (15 U.S.C. § 1114).  TSA’s actions also 

constitute unfair competition in violation of both federal (15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)) and state (815 Ill. 

Comp. Stat. 505/1 et seq. & 510/1 et seq.) statutes, and unfair competition and unjust enrichment 

in violation of Illinois common law. 

4. Moreover, TSA also tortiously interfered with U.S. Soccer’s contractual 

agreement with the player depicted in TSA’s advertisement.  As noted above, U.S. Soccer has 

entered into a collective bargaining agreement with the United States National Team Players 

Associations, which prohibits all of the United States National Team players from making any 
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endorsements or commercial appearances without the prior written consent and approval of U.S. 

Soccer.  Notwithstanding these contracts, TSA encouraged and, upon information and belief, 

paid a National Team member to participate in its advertisement without the express approval of 

U.S. Soccer.  Such conduct constitutes tortious interference in the contractual relations of another 

in violation of Illinois common law. 

5. Accordingly, U.S. Soccer seeks: (1) an order declaring that TSA has committed 

these federal and state violations; (2) a temporary restraining order, preliminary injunctive relief 

and permanent injunctive relief prohibiting TSA from using U.S. Soccer’s marks or any other 

confusingly similar marks; (3) entry of an award of damages to U.S. Soccer including actual 

damages or TSA’s profits pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117 and 1125(d); (4) treble and punitive 

damages; (5) pre-judgment interest for any damages awarded; (6) costs of suit incurred herein; 

(7) U.S. Soccer’s attorneys’ fees reasonably expended in this action; and (8) such other and 

further relief as the Court deems just and appropriate under the circumstances. 

PARTIES 

6. U.S. Soccer is, and at all times relevant hereto was, a New York not-for-profit 

corporation with its principal place of business in Chicago, Illinois. 

7. Upon information and belief, TSA is, and at all times relevant hereto was, a 

Delaware corporation with its principal place of business in Englewood, Colorado. 

JURISDICTION AND VENUE 

8. This Court has subject matter jurisdiction over this action pursuant to the Lanham 

Act, 15 U.S.C. § 1121, and 28 U.S.C. § 1331 (federal question jurisdiction), § 1338(a) and (b) 

(jurisdiction over trademark and unfair competition claims) and § 1367 (supplemental 

jurisdiction). 
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9. This Court also has subject matter over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1332, 

as U.S. Soccer and TSA are diverse parties that are citizens of different states, and the amount in 

controversy exceeds $75,000. 

10. This Court has personal jurisdiction over TSA because it actively solicits and 

engages in business in Illinois and this Judicial District, including, but not limited to, being 

registered to do business in Illinois, owning and operating thirty-one stores in Illinois, including 

four stores within the city of Chicago, and maintaining a registered agent for service of process 

in Illinois. 

11. Venue is proper in this Court under 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and (c) because this 

Court has personal jurisdiction over TSA, and because a substantial part of the events giving rise 

to the claims alleged herein occurred in this Judicial District. 

FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 

United States Soccer Federation, Inc.  

12. Founded in 1913, U.S. Soccer is the national governing body for all soccer in the 

United States, and fields all national teams, including the Men’s National Team (“MNT” or 

“National Team”), which is the professional soccer team that represents the United States at 

international competitions, including, but not limited to, the FIFA World Cup.    

13. Over the last several decades, soccer in the United States has grown into an 

extremely popular sport.  The United States has hosted three World Cups, the National Team is 

currently playing in its sixth consecutive FIFA World Cup, and the Women’s National Team has 

won two Women’s World Cups and two Olympic gold medals.  These high-profile events have 

increased interest in the sport, as well as soccer equipment and merchandise, including official 

U.S. Soccer gear, the sales of which have increased significantly over the last several years.   
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14. Moreover, the 2010 FIFA World Cup, which began on June 11, 2010, has 

garnered impressive television ratings.  The National Team’s opening game against England on 

Saturday, June 12, 2010, drew more than 17 million viewers worldwide and exceeded the 

viewership both of the first four games of the NBA championship series and of the NHL’s 

Stanley Cup finals.     

U.S. Soccer’s Registered Mark 

15. As part of the worldwide development of its brand, U.S. Soccer is the exclusive, 

worldwide owner of all rights, titles, and interest to the trademarks, trade names, service marks, 

logos, designs, seals, symbols, emblems, and other intellectual property for all United States 

National Teams and their uniforms, marks and designs, including those of the National Team.  

Indeed, U.S. Soccer owns approximately 15 registrations for marks covering various goods and 

services relating to, inter alia, U.S. Soccer and the United States National Teams. 

16. Specifically, and particularly relevant to this dispute, U.S. Soccer has registered 

the following trademark with the United States Patent and Trademark Office (referred to herein 

as “U.S. Crest Logo Mark”): 

 

U.S. Soccer filed its trademark application for the U.S. Crest Logo Mark on January 27, 1995 

and registered the trademark on April 29, 1997, as U.S. Trademark No. 2,058436.  The mark is 
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legally and validly registered for a wide range of goods and services, including but not limited to 

clothing, namely polo shirts, entertainment in the nature of soccer exhibits and games and 

association services, namely promoting the interests of member soccer clubs, scheduling games, 

and promoting interest in soccer.  Attached hereto as Exhibit A is a true and correct copy of the 

trademark registration certificate for the U.S. Crest Logo Mark.   

17. The National Team uniforms prominently feature the U.S. Crest Logo Mark.  The 

following is an example of the current “away” uniform displaying that mark: 

 

18. U.S. Soccer has registered the U.S. Crest Logo Mark for other goods and services 

and has registered other similar marks featuring the words US SOCCER and/or similar design 

elements.  These marks are legally and validly registered on the Principal Register of the United 

States Patent and Trademark Office.  Attached hereto as Exhibits B through I are true and correct 
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copies of the trademark registration certificates for these other marks.  The U.S. Crest Logo 

Mark and these other marks are referred to herein as the “U.S. Soccer Marks.”  

19. Pursuant to 15 U.S.C. § 1057(b), U.S. Soccer’s federal registration certificates are 

prima facie evidence of the validity of its U.S. Soccer Marks as well as U.S. Soccer’s ownership 

and exclusive right to use its U.S. Soccer Marks in connection with the goods and services 

identified in the registration certificates.  Moreover, U.S. Soccer’s federal registration for the 

U.S. Crest Logo Mark is incontestable under 15 U.S.C. § 1065.  U.S. Soccer’s incontestable 

registration is conclusive evidence of the validity of the mark listed in the registration, U.S. 

Soccer’s ownership of the mark, and U.S. Soccer’s exclusive right to use the mark in commerce 

in connection with the identified goods. 

20. TSA had constructive notice of U.S. Soccer’s ownership of federally registered 

rights to the U.S. Crest Logo mark under 15 U.S.C. § 1072, at least as of April 29, 1997.  

21. U.S. Soccer has spent a great deal of time, money and effort in the promotion of 

soccer in the United States, raising the level of awareness regarding United States soccer in the 

world and establishing public recognition of the U.S. Soccer Marks, such that the public will 

identify them with the U.S. Soccer and the National Team.  For example, U.S. Soccer has 

extensively used the U.S. Soccer Marks on its website at www.ussoccer.com and in promotions 

for events involving the National Team, like the 2010 FIFA World Cup.   

22. As a result of these efforts, the U.S. Soccer Marks are some of U.S. Soccer’s most 

valuable assets. 
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U.S. Soccer’s Agreements With National Team Members 

23. The National Team uniforms are provided to National Team members and are 

only intended to be used or worn during officially sanctioned U.S. Soccer events and games or 

with the express written consent of U.S. Soccer.   

24. In fact, U.S. Soccer entered into a collective bargaining agreement with the 

players’ union, the United States National Soccer Team Players Association, that limits the 

players’ abilities to endorse, market or promote products, including through the wearing of the 

National Team uniforms.  Specifically, the parties’ contract provides: 

(a) Because of [U.S. Soccer’s] concern that the public might be 
misled to believe that a particular product or event is endorsed or 
sponsored by [U.S. Soccer] and the need of [U.S. Soccer] to 
preserve its reputation and integrity as the National Governing 
Body for the sport of soccer in the United States, Player agrees that 
Player shall not:   
 
(i) use the name or logos of the Team or [U.S. Soccer] for any 
purpose . . .  
 
(ii) use any uniform of the Team or [U.S. Soccer] for any 
purpose other than appearing in a match as requested by [U.S. 
Soccer] unless Player shall have received prior written consent and 
approval of [U.S. Soccer.]  . . .  
 
(iii) make any endorsements or commercial appearances, 
sponsor any products, or use or consent to use by any third party of 
any name, picture or likeness of Player in which Player appears, 
either alone or with others, in the official Team uniform, or any 
attire which closely resembles or is confusingly similar to the 
official Team uniform, or in any attire whatsoever bearing or 
displaying the marks and/or logos of either [U.S. Soccer] or the 
Team unless Player(s) shall have received the prior written consent 
and approval of [U.S. Soccer.]  . . .  
 
(v) engage in marketing efforts, alone or with others, as the 
Team or in his capacity as a Team player that will lead someone to 
believe that [U.S. Soccer] has endorsed a business, product or 
service.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed to give any 
Player or the Players Association the right, without [U.S. Soccer’s] 
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prior written consent, to state or imply that [U.S. Soccer] has 
endorsed a product, service, or business.     

25. The contract between U.S. Soccer and the National Team players (including 

Taylor Twellman) is, and has been at all relevant times hereto, in full force and effect and does 

not terminate until December 31, 2010.    

U.S. Soccer’s Official Sponsors 

26. As noted in U.S. Soccer’s agreement with the National Team players, U.S. Soccer 

is and has always been concerned about protecting its reputation and integrity regarding the 

products and/or events that it endorses and/or sponsors.  To that end, U.S. Soccer has identified 

certain “official” sponsors, including an official Sporting Goods Retailer – Dick’s Sporting 

Goods (“Dick’s”) – to which U.S. Soccer licenses its property on an exclusive basis.  U.S. 

Soccer has clearly identified these official sponsors on its website at 

http://www.ussoccer.com/About/Sponsors.aspx (last visited June 16, 2010).   

27.  Dick’s  is exclusively licensed to, inter alia, use U.S. Soccer’s trademarks, 

including the U.S. Soccer Marks at issue in this litigation, “in both national and local market 

advertising, marketing, and promotional campaign collateral material” and “the likeness of 

approved [U.S. Soccer] Team athletes.”   

TSA’s Unauthorized Use Of The U.S. Crest Logo Mark And The National Team Uniform 

28. Upon information and belief, TSA is a retailer specializing in sporting goods that 

operates approximately 450 stores in 45 U.S. states under the name “The Sports Authority”.  

TSA also sells products on its website, www.sportsauthority.com.   

29. Recently, U.S. Soccer became aware that TSA was running an advertisement that 

featured a member of the National Team who is still under contract with U.S. Soccer, as well as 

the National Team uniform prominently displaying the U.S. Crest Logo Mark.  Upon 
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information and belief, TSA planned to and did run this advertisement during the United States 

versus England game of the 2010 FIFA World Cup on Saturday, June 12, 2010.   

30. As noted, TSA’s advertisement features a National Team member, Taylor 

Twellman, together with retired NFL star Michael Strahan.  Mr. Twellman and Mr. Strahan were 

pictured wearing official National Team uniforms and the advertisement featured several close-

up shots of U.S. Crest Logo Mark on the uniform and a soccer ball in slow motion.  Still images 

from these close-up shots are shown below compared to the U.S. Crest Logo Mark: 

 

 

 

 
 

U.S. Soccer did not give TSA permission to display these logos or to allow Mr. Twellman to 

appear in this advertisement “in the official Team uniform, or any attire which closely resembles 
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or is confusingly similar to the official Team uniform, or in any attire whatsoever bearing or 

displaying the marks and/or logos of either [U.S. Soccer] or the Team.”    

31. Moreover, TSA’s use of the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National Team 

uniform interferes with U.S. Soccer’s contract with Dick’s, and Dick’s exclusive right to use the 

U.S. Soccer Marks.  In fact, U.S. Soccer’s agreement with Dick’s specifically identifies TSA as a 

competitor of Dick’s and as an entity that cannot be granted any marketing rights by U.S. Soccer.  

32. After learning of TSA’s unauthorized use of the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the 

National Team uniform, U.S. Soccer sent a cease and desist letter to TSA on June 11, 2010, 

demanding that TSA “immediately and permanently cease and desist the distribution, 

advertising, display or other use of any advertisements or other material depicting U.S. Soccer’s 

intellectual property, including but not limited to the Men’s National Team uniform.”     

33. Moreover, U.S. Soccer informed TSA that:  (a) U.S. Soccer holds exclusive 

ownership in the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National Team’s uniform, mark and design and 

had not authorized TSA to use such marks; (b) U.S. Soccer has an agreement with the National 

Team players, including Mr. Twellman, prohibiting them from appearing in advertisements 

without the express approval of U.S. Soccer and, again, U.S. Soccer had not given any member 

or member of the National Team permission to appear in TSA’s advertisements; and (c) U.S. 

Soccer has an exclusive marketing agreement with Dick’s, with which TSA’s advertisement 

directly interfered.  

34. Despite receiving this letter on June 11, 2010, TSA authorized the broadcast of 

the infringing advertisement on June 12, 2010 during the United States and England match of the 

2010 FIFA World Cup that day.  As discussed above, this match drew a significant television 

audience worldwide.   
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35. On June 16, 2010, TSA responded in writing to U.S. Soccer’s June 11, 2010 cease 

and desist letter and indicated that it would not cease the broadcast of the advertisement.   

36. U.S. Soccer has been informed that TSA plans to have the infringing 

advertisement aired again during the United States versus Slovenia match of the 2010 FIFA 

World Cup, which is scheduled to be broadcast on ESPN and ESPN2 on Friday, June 18, 2010 at 

9:00 a.m. Central Daylight Time.   

37. Upon further information and belief, TSA has unjustly profited, and continues to 

profit unjustly, by displaying without authorization the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National 

Team uniform in the infringing advertisement.   

FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Trademark Infringement under the Lanham Act – 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1)) 

38. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

37 as if fully stated herein. 

39. As stated above, U.S. Soccer owns the U.S. Soccer Marks of which TSA is and 

has been aware. 

40. TSA has displayed, and continues to display, the U.S. Crest Logo Mark in its 

advertisements without a valid license or the consent of U.S. Soccer.  TSA’s actions are likely to 

have caused and will continue to cause confusion, mistake and deception both among consumers 

intending to purchase official U.S. Soccer sporting goods and as to the affiliation, connection, 

sponsorship, partnership and/or association of TSA with U.S. Soccer.  TSA’s actions are in 

violation of 15 U.S.C. § 1114(1). 

41. By committing these acts, TSA has willfully infringed the U.S. Soccer Marks and 

TSA had deprived and continues to deprive U.S. Soccer of the ability to control the consumer 
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perception of its brands, placing the valuable reputation and goodwill of U.S. Soccer in the hands 

of TSA, over whom U.S. Soccer has no control.   

42. TSA’s willful infringement of the U.S. Soccer Marks has caused, and will 

continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer damages in an amount to be determined at trial. 

43. TSA’s willful infringement of the U.S. Soccer Marks has also caused, and, if not 

permanently enjoined, will continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 

SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Unfair Competition under the Lanham Act – 15 U.S.C. § 1125(a)) 

44. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

43 as if fully stated herein. 

45. TSA’s use of the U.S. Soccer Marks and the National Team uniform, which 

consumers currently exclusively associate with U.S. Soccer, in its advertisement has likely 

caused and will continue to cause confusion, mistake and deception among consumers intending 

to purchase official U.S. Soccer sporting goods as to the affiliation, connection, sponsorship, 

partnership and/or association of TSA with U.S. Soccer.  TSA’s actions are in violation of 15 

U.S.C. § 1125(a). 

46. By committing these acts, TSA has willfully infringed the U.S. Soccer Marks and 

its rights in the National Team Uniform and TSA has deprived and continues to deprive U.S. 

Soccer of the ability to control the consumer perception of its brand, placing the valuable 

reputation and goodwill of U.S. Soccer in the hands of TSA, over whom U.S. Soccer has no 

control.   
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47. As a result of its conduct, TSA has willfully caused, and will continue to cause, 

U.S. Soccer to suffer damages.  Moreover, TSA has and will continue to profit from its acts of 

unfair competition. 

48. TSA’s acts of unfair competition have also caused, and, if not preliminarily and 

permanently enjoined, will continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 

THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

 (Tortious Interference with Contractual Relations – Illinois Common Law) 

49. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

48 as if fully stated herein. 

50. U.S. Soccer has a valid and enforceable contract with members of the National 

Team, including Taylor Twellman, who appeared in TSA’s advertisement.   

51. TSA is and has been aware of this contract. 

52. TSA has committed, and continues to commit, an intentional and unjustified 

inducement of a breach of this contract by encouraging and, upon information and belief, paying 

Taylor Twellman to participate in TSA’s advertisement without the express approval of U.S. 

Soccer.   

53. TSA’s wrongful conduct has caused, and will continue to cause, Taylor Twellman 

to breach this contract. 

54. TSA’s wrongful conduct has caused, and will continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to 

suffer damages in an amount to be determined at trial. 

55. TSA’s wrongful conduct has also caused, and, if not permanently enjoined, will 

continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 
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FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Unfair Competition – Illinois Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act) 

(815 Ill. Comp. Stat. 510/1 et seq.) 

56. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

55 as if fully stated herein. 

57. TSA has displayed, and continues to display, the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the 

National Team uniform in its advertisement without a valid license or the consent of U.S. Soccer.  

TSA’s actions are likely to have caused and will continue to cause confusion, mistake and 

deception both among consumers intending to purchase official U.S. Soccer sporting goods and 

as to the affiliation, connection, sponsorship, partnership and/or association of TSA with U.S. 

Soccer.  These actions violate 815 Ill. Comp. Stat. 510/1 et seq. 

58. Because TSA had actual and constructive notice of U.S. Soccer’s prior use of and 

rights in the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the other U.S. Soccer Marks before it ran its 

advertisements, TSA willfully engaged in unfair trade practices in violation of Illinois law. 

59. TSA’s wrongful conduct has caused, and, if not permanently enjoined, will 

continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 

60. TSA’s wrongful conduct has also caused U.S. Soccer to suffer and continue to 

suffer commercial damages and other pecuniary harm.   

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Unfair Competition – Illinois Consumer Fraud and Deceptive Business Practices Act) 

(815 Ill. Comp. Stat. 505/1 et seq.) 

61. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

60 as if fully stated herein. 
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62. TSA has displayed, and continues to display, the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the 

National Team uniform in its advertisement without a valid license or the consent of U.S. Soccer.  

TSA’s actions are likely to have caused and will continue to cause confusion, mistake and 

deception both among consumers intending to purchase official U.S. Soccer sporting goods and 

as to the affiliation, connection, sponsorship, partnership and/or association of TSA with U.S. 

Soccer.  These actions violate 815 Ill. Comp. Stat. 505/1 et seq. 

63. TSA’s wrongful conduct has caused, and will continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to 

suffer damages in an amount to be determined at trial. 

64. TSA’s wrongful conduct has also caused, and, if not permanently enjoined, will 

continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 

SIXTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Unfair Competition – Illinois Common Law) 

65. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

64 as if fully stated herein. 

66. TSA has displayed, and continues to display, the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the 

National Team uniform in its advertisement without a valid license or the consent of U.S. Soccer.  

TSA’s actions are likely to have caused and will continue to cause confusion, mistake and 

deception both among consumers intending to purchase official U.S. Soccer sporting goods and 

as to the affiliation, connection, sponsorship, partnership and/or association of TSA with U.S. 

Soccer. 

67. TSA’s wrongful conduct has caused, and will continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to 

suffer damages in an amount to be determined at trial. 
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68. TSA’s wrongful conduct has also caused, and, if not permanently enjoined, will 

continue to cause, U.S. Soccer to suffer irreparable harm. 

SEVENTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF 

(Unjust Enrichment – Illinois Common Law) 

69. U.S. Soccer repeats and re-alleges the allegations made in Paragraphs 1 through 

68 as if fully stated herein. 

70. Upon information and belief, TSA has received, and continues to receive, a 

pecuniary and/or other benefit by displaying the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National Team 

uniform in its advertising.   

71. U.S. Soccer has been, and will continue to be, deprived of pecuniary and/or other 

benefits by TSA’s unauthorized use of the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National Team 

uniform. 

72. TSA’s retention of a benefit obtained through the unauthorized or infringing use 

of the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National Team uniform would be unjust. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, U.S. Soccer prays for the entry of a temporary restraining order and a 

preliminary injunction enjoining TSA’s improper conduct as alleged above and for a final 

judgment that provides for the following findings and orders the following relief: 

A. TSA has infringed U.S. Soccer’s trademark rights in the U.S. Soccer Marks; 

B. TSA has tortiously interfered with U.S. Soccer’s contractual relations with Taylor 

Twellman; 

C. TSA has engaged in unfair competition by improperly using the U.S. Crest Logo 

Mark and the National Team uniform in its advertisement; 
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D. TSA has unjustly received a pecuniary and/or other benefit, and denied the same 

to U.S. Soccer, by improperly using the U.S. Crest Logo Mark and the National 

Team uniform in its advertisement; 

E. Entry of a permanent injunction prohibiting TSA from using any of the U.S. 

Soccer Marks or any other confusingly similar marks; 

F. Entry of an award of damages to U.S. Soccer including actual damages or TSA’s  

profits pursuant to 15 U.S.C. §§ 1117 and 1125(d) and 815 ILCS 505/10a et seq.; 

G. Treble and punitive damages; 

H. Pre-judgment interest for any damages awarded; 

I. The costs of suit incurred herein; 

J. U.S. Soccer’s attorneys’ fees reasonably expended in this action; and 

K. Such other and further relief as the Court deems just and appropriate under the 

circumstances. 

JURY DEMAND 

U.S. Soccer demands trial by jury on all issues. 
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Dated: June 17, 2010 

Respectfully submitted, 

      /s/ Joseph V. Norvell                                     
Joseph V. Norvell (Reg. No. 6225747) 
Joseph T. Kucala, Jr. (Reg. No. 6275312) 
William D. Jackson (Reg. No. 6207166) 
Jay M. Burgett (Reg. No. 6285841) 
NORVELL IP LLC 
1776 Ash Street 
Northfield, Illinois  60093 
Telephone:    (847) 809-2212 
Facsimile:     (312) 268-5063 
courts@norvellip.com  

Attorneys for Plaintiff United States Soccer 
Federation, Inc.   
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 
 

 I hereby certify that a copy of the foregoing COMPLAINT FOR TRADEMARK 

INFRINGEMENT, UNFAIR COMPETITION, TORTIOUS INTERFERENCE AND 

RELATED STATE AND COMMON LAW CLAIMS AND EXHIBITS A-I were electronically 

filed on June 17, 2010 through the Court’s electronic filing and served upon the following: 

 
  TSA Stores, Inc. 
  Registered Agent: C T Corporation Systems 

208 South LaSalle Street, Suite 814 
Chicago, Illinois 60604 
 

This 17th day of June, 2010. 
 
 
_/s/ Joseph V. Norvell 
An Attorney for Plaintiff United States Soccer Federation, Inc. 
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